BAART Response to Questions


NNL14ZB1001R


	Question Number
	Question
	Answer

	1
	Conference presentation mentioned font size of 12 pt.  and the Draft RFP (P.14(b)) states 11 point font. Please clarify
	We apologize for the discrepancy.  The final RFP will specify 11 point font.    

	2
	Is there interest in materials science and the prevention and remediation of corrosion?
	Yes, prevention and remediation of corrosion falls within Technical Track A of the Performance Work Statement (PWS). 

	3
	Is the ISO9001 or AS9100 certification required to be considered a Significant Sub?
	No. IS09001 or AS9100 certification will not be required to be considered as a significant subcontractor for work under BAART. A prime that proposes and is certified will be responsible for controlling that work which they subcontract to maintain their certification. 

	4
	As budget concerns become more critical, will cost become a critical/important criteria for award of task orders ie the use of LPTA?
	The Government is not planning to use the Lowest Price Technically Acceptable (LPTA) evaluation approach due to the complexity of the Task Orders expected to be issued.

	5
	Will NASA LaRC consider a revision to the AS9100 requirement for tracks A&C? Much of the SOW-work on these tracks are not aerospace –production related.  ISO 9001 would cover quality requirements.  As options, only require a proposing teammate be AS9100 certified (not the whole team or the prime)or require AS9100 certification on a task order basis?
	NASA has revised the AS9100 and ISO 9001 requirements. All offerors must be certified to either the ISO9001 or AS9100 quality standard at the time of proposal submission to be eligible for award.  AS9100 requirements will be defined at the time of task order solicitation within Tracks A & C. See Final RFP for changes in these areas.

	6
	Why no HUBZone goals? 
	Extensive market research was conducted on this procurement. The PDT reviewed the history of the contracts included in BAART to determine the percentage of subcontracting dollars historically achieved through the type of work performed.  The team reviewed similar scopes to BAART Tracks A, C, and E, and found that the HUBZone goals established for most of those efforts have not been met, because the amount and type of work being performed does not always lend itself subcontracting opportunities. Historically, the technical content of the work has been largely highly complex and integrated work such that the prime contractor managed all aspects of the work performed under each individual task order.  After review of all of the resources available to the team, it was decided that it would be difficult to establish reasonable HUBZone goals for the BAART procurement. This does not preclude HUBZone companies from competing as a prime or subcontractor.  

	7
	Can a small business propose only to part of a track?  For example propose only to A.2?
	No, Prime offeror proposals will be evaluated and awards will be made only at the Track level.  

	8
	Must all Subcontractors be AS9100 or ISO certified prior to proposal submission or is this only applicable to the prime.
	See response to Question 3.

	9
	Why are there no HUBZone goals when we know at least 2 HUBZone companies responded to the RFI and were qualified?
	See the response to Question 6.

	10
	Does a small business proposing to a Full and Open Track need to provide a small business subcontracting plan
	No. A small business proposing to a Full and Open Track does not need to provide a small business subcontracting plan.  Please see Section L.20 of the RFP for further guidance.

	11
	May a SDVOSB submit for only one portion of a technical task order track?
	See response to Question 7.  

	12
	I know that at least two HUBZone engineering companies submitted information in response to the sources sought RFI and both companies have previous NASA experience.

If you could help me I would like to better understand why there are no HUBZone goals for BAART, and more importantly what are we doing wrong that we can't get contracts to recognize that there are qualified HUBZone engineering companies.


	See response to Question 6.  


	13
	[Our company] has potential interest in this solicitation, but we employ over 2,700 employees.  Does this preclude us from participating in this solicitation?  
	This solicitation is a Full and Open competition except for Track B, which is set aside for small business concerns with a size standard of 1500 for all technical tracks.   A not-for-profit organization is regarded as other than small (i.e., a Large Business) regardless of its size.  

	14
	What is the expected [Technology Readiness Level] TRL for technology proposed to this solicitation?
	The TRL for work to be accomplished under this contract is expected to be between TRL 2 and 6.

	15
	From the web presentation in the pre-solicitation conference, I did not see a section in the proposal layout that includes proposed work to be done, or significance of innovation.  So I’m confused, how do we tie in the research to be done to the past work, business plan, small business utilization, and conflict of interests? 
	NASA is utilizing a four factor evaluation including Price, Past Performance, OCI and Small Business Utilization.  There is no Mission Suitability factor.   Refer to Section L of the RFP for Past Performance submittal requirements.



	16
	Aside from set aside research tracks (such as track B for this solicitation), what is the success rate for small businesses for full and open research tracks based on past awards to the SMAART solicitation?  To some extent, it seems that the solicitation is written to force large businesses to include small businesses.  
	With regard to the first question, NASA does not have that information.  Regarding the second question, it is Government policy to encourage the maximum effective use of small business subcontractors, per FAR Part 19.7.

	17
	We fully recognize the importance of process and procedure as embodied in ISO9001 and AS9100.  The nature of the work scope for BAART will certainly benefit from ISO9001 at the contract level, but we believe AS9100 at the contract level may be 'overkill' in many cases.  For example, do we really need AS9100 for a technical analysis not involving flight hardware?  The AS9100 requirement at the contract level will also eliminate many capable bidders who have not had a need for this level of certification in their business activities. We therefore recommend that NASA revise the AS9100 requirement to be on a task basis rather than a global requirement for the full contract.


	See response to Question 5.

	18
	If [Our Company] is interested in sending a proposal for all Tracks (except Track B) – can I bundle all responses for the Past Performance into one Volume One, separated by tabs or some other mechanism to differentiate amongst the Tracks?  Or should they be four separate Past Performance Volumes: one for each Track?    Same question for the other volumes - Business, Small Business and OCI.


	Yes. In accordance with L.14 offerors should include past performance information for all Technical Tracks proposed into one volume One, with dividers between Tracks. 

Volume II Business proposal - Offerors should submit one binder containing the Business proposal using a divider to separate different sections.  Reference Section L.14 of the RFP for more details.

Volume III Small Business Utilization – Offerors should submit one binder containing the Small Business Utilization proposal using a divider to separate different sections.  Reference Section L.16 of the RFP for more details.

Volume IV OCI – This is one binder with a 20 page limit.

	19
	Will the current Flight Critical Systems Research contracts be made available on-line?
	Task orders issued under the Flight Critical Systems Research contract will be available in the Bidder’s Library.  A link will be provided in the RFP, which will be posted on Federal Business Opportunities (FedBizOpps.gov) 

	20
	1) For graphics and tables in the text, is it ok to use the industry-standard 8-point font? - 11-point Arial is identified in the draft RFP for the main body, but no text size is specified for the tables or figures.


	See response to Question 1.

	21
	1) DRFP page 62, L.18 Volume I – Past Performance Proposal, section (b) item 3) states that for each contract identified the offeror include, “Points of contact in the program and contracting offices…” - Does this refer to the points of contact at our company (i.e. the offeror), or the points of contact at the government agency (i.e. the customer for whom the contract was performed)


	Points of contact are individuals who are referenced in the offeror’s Past Performance Questionnaire and who are responsible for validating the offeror’s performance.  For a government contract, points of contact could include the Government Contracting Officer, Contracting Officer’s Representative and/or program representative.

	22
	“Volume III shall include small business utilization information for all technical tracks for which the offeror intends to propose. The offeror shall submit one binder for all areas proposed using a divider to separate each technical track." [DFRP, pg.61]

Is it acceptable to have information specific to the technical track separated with dividers, but common information such as commitment to the utilization of small business and market research information provided once in a "general" portion of the utilization plan, or are separate, full utilization plans required for each technical track?
	Volume III Small Business Utilization – Offerors should submit one binder containing the Small Business Utilization proposal using a divider to separate different sections.  Reference Sections L.14 and L.16 of the RFP for more details.



	23
	In regards to Draft RFP Page 62, Section L.18 (b): Should the offeror include three relevant contracts for each Track they bid (e.g. Track A)?  Or should the offeror include three relevant contracts for each major subtopic (e.g. A.1.1, A.1.2, A.1.3, A.1.4, A.2.1, A.2.2., A.2.3, A.2.4, A.2.5, A.2.6, A.2.7, etc.)?
	Offerors should include three relevant contracts for each Track (A through E) to which they propose. The narrative must clearly reference the specific PWS subsection for which the work is pertinent.

	24
	In regards to Draft RFP Page 62: is the offeror expected to use the same three most relevant customers for both L.18 (b) and for L.18 (c)?  
	Yes.

	25
	Solicitation Section J, ‘List of Documents’ includes Exhibit E, Class C Software Development Plan.   Unable to locate a description of the Class C Software Development Plan in Solicitation Exhibit B, ‘Contract Documentation Requirements’.   Is a description available of the Class C Software Development Plan?
	The requirements for Class B and Class C Software Development plans will be added to Exhibit B.

	26
	Solicitation Section B.2, CLIN 003.  Request clarification if Cooperative Agreements are an option under cost share type awards.
	No. The draft solicitation does not currently include terms and conditions to allow the award of Cooperative Agreements as cost share task orders.

	27
	Solicitation Section L.7, Significant Subcontractors, includes price thresholds for proposal preparation purposes.   Are there track price thresholds for the offerors for completion of the proposal cost forms?
	For the cost/price evaluation, the offerors must require subcontractors who are anticipated to exceed the significant subcontractor thresholds listed in the solicitation to submit the cost forms.   

	28
	Will the model contract include FAR flowdown clauses for working with universities and foundational research institutions?
	Yes.  These clauses are included in the solicitation.

	29
	Can you verify that ISO9001 certification is required to bid Track B?
	All offerors must be certified to either the ISO9001 or AS9100 quality standard at the time of proposal submission.

	30
	Can past performance be submitted for subcontractors that may not meet the dollar threshold for significant subcontractor?
	No, past performance information is limited to the prime and significant subcontractors defined by the dollar threshold specified in the RFP.  

	31
	Draft Costing Form 2 seems to indicate that the prime will depict one burdened labor rate for the team for each labor category versus showing the multiple burdened labor rates proposed by the prime and each of the significant subcontractors; will the prime need to depict one rate per category?


	Yes.  Form 2 shall include only one set of rates per labor category.  The word “set” is used because 1 labor category can have different rates: one for the first year and different {escalated} rates for the out years.  But in no case should there be multiple sets of rates for 1 labor category.  However, the single set of rate(s) for each labor category in Form 2 can be based on multiple set(s) of rates for the same category.  For example, the single set of rate(s) for each category in Form 2 can be averages [i.e. simple or weighted , depending on how the prime wants to propose] based on the offeror’s category and subcontractor(s) category(ies) [significant and/or non- significant subs].  The cost details (i.e. components of the average rates) shall be provided in Form 3.

Again, Offerors shall not propose multiple sets of rates for the same category in Form 2 (e.g. they can’t propose and Eng 1 for the prime and an Eng 1 for a sub.  The simplest way to say it is :  “Do not add or delete any rows in Form 2 , and offerors shall propose all [and only] those categories listed in Form 2”

	32
	How will future task order proposals be bid under the BAART contract umbrella? (i.e., will future task orders be bid using the rates that the prime indicated for each labor category on the Prime’s Draft Costing Form 2; or, will future task orders be bid using the rates that the prime and its significant subcontractors indicated on their respective Draft Costing Form 2; or, will future task order be bid using current costing practices of the prime and their subcontractors?)
	Future task orders should be priced using rates current at the time of task order proposal submission.  There will be no IDIQ schedule of rates (i.e. the rates proposed in the BAART cost forms will not be incorporated into the contract). The rates proposed in response to the BAART solicitation [in the BAART cost forms ] are for the purpose of performing price and cost realism analyses for the BAART solicitation and are not intended to be used to price future task orders.

	33
	Can you please elaborate on the requirement for an ISO9001 certification for small business proposers responding only to Track B, which is predominately studies, systems analysis, and methods? This certification may present a cost and administrative burden to many small businesses.
	See response to Question 5.

	34
	Please clarify the instructions on Past Performance in Volume I.  Should information regarding contract details that are the same be duplicated for each of the 5 technical tracks?  Can a summary section be included that is applicable to all technical tracks, with details referencing the applicable PWS sections?  

Will the Government consider a page allocation for high level-summary info that is applicable to all technical tracks?
	A summary section may be included as long as it stays within the page limitations specified in Section L.  
   

	35
	If an offeror’s labor categories do not fall exactly in line with the categories provided in Attachment 2, may the offeror add/delete/modify the labor categories?
	The labor position titles in Forms 1&2 should not be changed.  However, if titles in Forms 1 & 2 differ from those used in the offeror’s labor accounting and estimating system, the offeror should use titles (i.e. the offeror’s titles) in the remaining Forms 3 & 4.  Offerors shall provide a clear explanation and linkage between the RFP titled positions in Forms 1 & 2 to any of the offeror’s positions that have a different title so the Government can clearly see the offeror’s titled positions and corresponding rates that were used to develop the proposed rates for each titled labor category in Forms 1 & 2.  While the offeror’s titles for labor categories may differ from the titles used in the RFP/Cost Forms, the offeror’s titled positions used to calculate each proposed RFP titled position shall be for the same type of labor for each RFP titled position. 

	36
	The offeror is requested to submit labor rates in Attachment 2.  How does NASA want to see Interdivisional Work Transfer (IWT) rates represented?  Also, will NASA be treating the IWT’s as subcontractors?
	Rates for IWT(s) should be proposed in the same manner as that required for subcontractors.

	37
	Can the Cost Share CLIN be eliminated from BAART as a contract award type?
	No. The Cost Sharing CLIN is one of several CLINs available on the contract, and it is not anticipated that this CLIN will be used frequently.  However, the Cost Sharing CLIN exists to provide the Government flexibility when procuring emerging technologies that benefit from joint Government/industry development.    

	BAART Response to Solicitation Questions

	Question Number
	Question
	Answer

	38
	In RFP section L.16(c)(2), ‘(Cost Forms) Volume II shall include cost/price information for all technical tracks for which the offeror intends to propose’. 

Question: Request clarification whether cost/price information or rate only information is required in Volume II.


	Volume II should include entirely rate information except where cost information is required by Section L.19(2)(c), Indirect Costs in the RFP:

“If indirect rates have not been reviewed within the last 12 months by the responsible ACO or GAA, the Offeror shall provide a cost history for the last three years, including the actual expense pools and application base amounts for the larger indirect pools (e.g. overhead, fringe benefits, and G&A). The Offeror shall detail all cost elements in the pools and bases.”

Also note that in addition to the required rate and, if applicable, cost information, non-cost and non-rate information is required (e.g., identifying if proposed rates for a category are prime, sub, or composite [Forms 2 and 3 and, if applicable, Form 6], providing the name(s) of the sub(s) if proposed, providing the Offeror’s Fiscal Year (OFY) [Form 4], and providing information on the Offeror’s business systems [Form 5]). 

	39
	In RFP L.19(2) a) Cost/Price Forms, Subcontractor Proposal Information, ‘…Subcontractors not meeting the thresholds listed in Section L.7 of the RFP are not required to submit any cost forms; the prime Offeror only needs to provide the fully-burdened rate(s) for these subcontractor(s).’

Question: Request clarification on what qualifies as subcontractors “not meeting the thresholds listed in Section L.7”.  How many subcontractors will meet the RFP requirement per track? (for example; is there a supplier min or max quantity or is it all suppliers not meeting the threshold value?)
	Submit only fully-burdened rates (and for Form 6 for those proposing Track B: burdened rates thru all applicable indirect rates but excluding fee/profit) for those subcontractor(s) the prime Offeror anticipates being below the applicable thresholds listed in L.7.  
For example, if a prime Offeror is proposing Track A and the Offeror expects the total price for a subcontractor to be less than $15M, that subcontractor is not defined as a significant subcontractor, and, therefore, the prime Offeror only needs to provide the proposed fully-burdened rates for that particular subcontractor.  If, on the other hand, a prime Offeror is proposing Track A and expects the total price for a subcontractor to be greater than $15M, that subcontractor is defined as a significant subcontractor and is required to complete and submit Forms 2, 3, 4, & 5. There is no minimum or maximum number of proposed subcontractors.

	40
	Should exceptions to the model contract be submitted to NASA as soon as identified or at the time of proposal submittal?
	Any exceptions to the terms and conditions of the model contract should be submitted to NASA at the time of proposal submittal.  

	41
	Where in the proposal should we identify and describe the capabilities and experience of subcontractors who do not qualify as “significant”? 

Will the capabilities and experience of non-significant subcontractors be evaluated? 


	The past performance information is limited to the prime and significant subcontractors defined by the dollar threshold specified in the RFP.  Non-significant subcontractor capabilities and experiences will not be evaluated.


	42
	“L.18 VOLUME I – Past Performance Proposal, (c)  Past Performance Questionnaires: For each of the 3 most relevant contracts provided in (b) above, each offeror, as well as any significant subcontractor, shall provide each of these customers a Past Performance Questionnaire (Section J, Attachment 3a or 3b to this solicitation) for completion and submission to the Contract Specialist for this solicitation.”

Question:  If one of my Significant Subcontractor has only 1 relevant contract, is he still considered a Significant Subcontractor and is it OK for him to send only one Past Performance Questionnaire?


	A subcontractor is established as a Significant Subcontractor based upon the dollar thresholds specified in Section L.7 of the RFP and not on the number of questionnaires submitted by an offeror.  An offeror and its Significant Subcontractors may submit up to three Past Performance Questionnaires for evaluation of their performance.  The Government will evaluate up to three questionnaires considered to be relevant for the proposed work in a specific Technical Track.  


	43
	Can we include a high level company qualifications summary in one of the technical track narratives and simply refer to that summary in another Technical Track i.e., avoid repeating the same information for each track for which we are proposing?  We, of course, will stay within the required page counts. 


	A summary section may be included as long as it remains within the page limitations specified in Section L.  Evaluators will be reviewing the submitted information by Technical Track; therefore, each past performance narrative should be independent of the others.  

	44
	Since the Business Proposal will have only Composite Rates for the Labor Categories and no Estimated Cost, how do we demonstrate each Significant Subcontractor is meeting the Dollar Threshold?
	Offerors should list all the subcontractors they anticipate exceeding the thresholds for significant subcontractors listed in the RFP.  There is no requirement to demonstrate significant subcontractors are meeting the dollar thresholds established in L.7.

	45
	Is the offeror actually required to submit an OCI plan with their proposals as outlined in Section L of NNL14ZB1001R?  When I click on the Placeholder for OCI Exhibit D it says it will be incorporated after Contract Award.


	In accordance with Section L.20 of the RFP an offeror is required to submit an OCI Plan with its proposal as it is an evaluation factor.  The negotiated final OCI Plan will be in incorporated at contract award.   

	46
	Can you please confirm that offerors are not preparing Cost Proposals for Sample Tasks but rather we are preparing only the Past Performance Volumes for the selected Tracks we are interested in?


	You are correct, there is no requirement for preparing sample tasks orders for the BAART procurement.  Offerors are only required to prepare the Past Performance Volume for the selected Technical Tracks for which they intend to propose.  

	47
	Please confirm the email address for the submission of Past Performance Questionnaires?
	Ensure that all respondents to the Past Performance Questionnaires submit their responses to:  larc-baart@mail.nasa.gov

	48
	Several of us get a “corrupt file” error when trying to open the attached Amendment 3 file (161992-AMEND-001-003.xlsx). Can you help?
	There is a technical error in the revised Excel Past Performance Questionnaire (PPQ) Spreadsheet that will not allow it to open.  The only change to that spreadsheet was to correct the Contract Specialist’s email address specified in the Instructions Tab.  Please use the revised email addresses posted in Amendment 000001 of the solicitation and notify the appropriate respondents submitting PPQ’s of the revised email address.  A revised Excel PPQ spreadsheet will not be posted as a result of this change.

	
	
	

	50
	Will all of the Contractors can be granted a 2 week extension of the Proposal due date from October 23, 2014 to November 6, 2014 due to the extra time it will take to coordinate with the Past Performance raters and to have them re-direct their responses to the correct email address if they have already sent them in to the old address.  

Will the Past Performance Questionnaire be revised the correct email address added in Mod 000001?
	The date for submission of offers will be extended to October 30, 2014 by Amendment 000002 to allow for communication and coordination of PPQs with subcontractors and respondents submitting PPQ’s for the BAART solicitation. Question 48 addresses revisions to the PPQ.   

	51
	I have a question with reference to Government’s answer to Question #42 on BAART RFP.

“The Government will evaluate up to three questionnaires considered to be relevant for the proposed work in a specific Technical Track.”

Is it a total of up to three for “Prime and all Significant Subcontractors” together?

Or, will the Govt. evaluate up to three (3) questionnaires for Prime and up to three (3) questionnaires for each Significant Subcontractor?
	Per L.18 3 (b)(i), the Government will evaluate up to three (3) questionnaires for the Prime contractor and up to three (3) questionnaires for each Significant Subcontractor proposing to the BAART procurement.



	52
	For budgetary purposes, what contract ceiling amount should the offeror assume for each track? This ceiling amount is also critical to the Small Business Plan.


	The total contract ceiling for all awards made under the BAART solicitation is $402M.  For budgetary purposes, the estimates for each of the Tracks are as follows:

Track A - $313.5M

Track B - $3.3M

Track C - $25M

Track D - $15M

Track E – $45.2M

This information can be found in the Pre-Proposal Conference Chart 32 which is posted to FEDBIZOPPS.

	53
	In RFP L.19(2) a) Cost/Price Forms, Subcontractor Proposal Information, ‘…Subcontractors not meeting the thresholds listed in Section L.7 of the RFP are not required to submit any cost forms; the prime Offeror only needs to provide the fully-burdened rate(s) for these subcontractor(s).’ 

Where should the contractor tie the capabilities of NON-significant subcontractors? Listing them in a table of rates does not provide any insight as to their potential contribution.  
	The past performance information is limited to the prime and significant subcontractors defined by the dollar threshold specified in the RFP.  Non-significant subcontractor capabilities will not be evaluated.

	54
	Please confirm if the offeror needs to apply its burdens to a subcontractor rate in FORM 3. For example, should the offeror enter the subcontractor’s own fully burdened rate under the direct labor heading and then apply the Offeror’s burdens in the indirect rate columns?


	Offerors must propose in accordance with their accounting system. For instance, if applying indirect burden(s) on subcontract costs (e.g., G&A) is part of an Offeror’s established accounting policies and procedures, then the burden(s) should be proposed, identified and explained, and Form 3 should be tailored to reflect this. Refer to Footnote (1)(iii) in Form 3 for more information.


	55
	Our company consists of many divisions with different capabilities. Can we provide an overall corporate capability statement even if we are not listing those divisions as significant subcontractors? The rates of the other divisions will be included in the Cost Forms as non-significant subcontractors.


	See response to Question 53.  


	56
	In the last round of Q&A, the answer to question #51 is: “Per L.18 3 (b)(i), the Government will evaluate up to three (3) questionnaires for the Prime contractor and up to three (3) questionnaires for each Significant Subcontractor proposing to the BAART procurement.” This section does not exist in the document named BAART Solicitation v1 9 Final. Is there another version of the RFP?


	We apologize for the discrepancy. The correct solicitation reference is L.18(b)(i). The solicitation posted on FEDBIZOPPS is the correct version. 
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